## GOVERNMENT OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

ADVISORY NEIGHBORHOOD COMMISSION 3B GLOVER PARK, CATHEDRAL HEIGHTS AND WESLEY HEIGHTS



# ANC 3B Public Meeting Minutes 13 February 2025

Call to Order: 7:01 pm

Members Present: Kevin Lavezzo (3B01), Brian Turmail (3B02), Melissa Lane (3B03), Richard

Pollock (3B04), Gupi Howie (3B05) and Rob Rodriguez (3B06)

**Approval of Agenda:** Passed 6-0.

**Police Report.** Lt. Johnson reported 9 crimes in the past 30-day period. One was an unarmed carjacking of an older women on the 3800 block of Davis at about 8:30 am on 2/3. The assailant came up behind, knocked her to the ground and took her car. She received minor injuries and did not have to go to the hospital. The car was recovered the next day. If anyone has any video from that area during that day and time, please contact 2<sup>nd</sup> District MPD. The other eight crimes were mostly retail thefts that occurred at Trader Joe's, ACE hardware and CVS. Additionally, one theft was a package stolen off a porch in the 2200 block of Observatory Place and another was a patron who left Good Guys without paying their tabe (an arrest was made for that incident). The next community walkthrough is on February 26<sup>th</sup> at 6:30 pm in Woodley Park. The starting point is 2601 Connecticut Avenue.

### **Old Business:**

Follow-Up Briefing from Paula Hirschoff, League of Women Voters (an active member of 3RCforDC), on the DC Bill B26-0058, Recycling Refund and Litter Reduction Amendment Act of 2025. ANC 3B had a preliminary briefing on this topic prior to the introduction of the legislation to Council. The bill was introduced by CM Nadeau on January 15 and seeks to establish a producer responsibility collection and recycling program for beverage containers to be overseen by the Department of Energy and the Environment. The bill is currently under review with the Committee on Business and Economic Development. The deadline for hearings is July 14<sup>th</sup>. The bill calls for a 10-cent deposit for bottles only sold (and returned) in DC. They would be returned to stores equipped with reverse vending machines. Once the bottles are deposited in the machine, a voucher will be printed that can be redeemed for cash at the store check-out registers. Currently, only about 25 percent of the bottles sold here are recycled. Money from the recycling programs can be used to support social service and community programs. Ms. Hirschoff urged 3B to pass a resolution either supporting the bill, calling for the hearings to happen before the deadline or both. Asked who would pay for the reverse vending machines, she said the nonprofit set up by the participating corporations will pay to install and maintain them. She was also asked about the source of the recycling rates for DC and other states. She will find out the answer and send it to 3B. She will also get responses to questions about the potential

WWW.ANC3B.ORG EMAIL: ANC3BMAIL@GMAIL.COM

3B01 3B02 3B05 3B06 E. GLOVER PARK W. GLOVER PARK CATHEDRAL HEIGHTS N. GLOVER PARK S. GLOVER PARK CATHEDRAL HEIGHTS BRIAN TURMAIL RICHARD POLLOCK GUPI HOWIE ROBERT RODRIGUEZ KEVIN LAVEZZO MELISSA LANE

impact of this program on low-income families and senior citizens. For more information about the coalition, the website is <u>3RCforDC.org</u>.

#### **New Business:**

- Briefing on the Current Washington Gas Proposal, "District SAFE" (update of Project Pipes).

  Presenters included Brandon Todd, Alex Howard, Monica West and Opeluwa Olawale from Washington Gas and Light, Ade Adeniyi from the Office of People's Counsel and Anne DeBuys from the Chesapeake Climate Action Network (CCAN)
  - o Brandon Todd from WGL described the District Safe initiative as a proactive safety plan to modernize DC's natural gas infrastructure. It aligns with the Federal safety push by the US Department of Transportation's Pipeline Hazardous Materials Safety Administration to implement legislation passed in 2011 replacing aging pipes such as cast iron, wrought iron and steel. WGL first introduced Project Pipes in 2014 to address this legislation. District Safe is an update of that plan. The goal is to replace the most "at risk" pipes, reduce the potential for leaks and lower greenhouse gas emissions.
  - O Ade Adeniyi from the OPC briefed on the Public Service Commission's response to the District Safe proposal. She said that the PSC approved Project Pipes in 2014 to speedily replace the pipe infrastructure at the highest risk and to supplement WGL's mandatory leak management operations. WGL has consistently under replaced the problem pipes which is what led to the PSC not approving Project Pipes 3. They required WGL to develop and comprehensive strategic pipe replacement plan. This new proposed project, District Safe, is very expensive and does not comply multiple safety and efficiency directives of the PSC. Under the current proposal, pipe replacement would not be complete until 2094.
  - Anne DeBuys from the Chesapeake Climate Action Network agrees that the WGL pipes are old and leaking methane but that District Safe is not the answer to the problem since it keeps DC dependent on fossil fuels. WGL already has in place a repair and maintenance program to replace actively leaking and broken pipes. Project Pipes/District Safe is their accelerated replacement program but it does not address the most dangerous gas leaks. WGL is also currently charging customers a Project Pipes surcharge on their monthly bills which by 2028 will be \$9/month. This surcharge is especially difficult for those on low and fixed incomes. CCAN urges the PSC not to approve the District Safe plan but to require WGL to submit a plan that converts to zero carbon renewable energy. She asks that ANC 3B pass a resolution that also urges the PSC not to approve the latest WGL proposal.
- Briefing from Brian Joyner, Superintendent of Rock Creek Park, National Park Service.

  Superintendent Joyner responded to several questions from Commissioners. Asked about the mowing contract for the triangle area at Whitehaven and 35<sup>th</sup>, he said that after a myriad of problems, he thinks a new contract will be awarded and regular mowing will take place this summer. In answer to the question about who's responsible for mowing the area at 42<sup>nd</sup> ant New Mexico next to the victory gardens, Commissioner Lavezzo believes that it is DC responsibility. He was also asked about coordination with DC regarding the homelessness problem. He said that NPS works closely with several DC agencies and have developed a protocol with DC to address the unsheltered community. Currently, when they are going to close an encampment, 14 days' notice is given the DC government and third-party groups come in to work with the people who will be displaced. Asked about snow removal on NPS land, he said they did a better job after the more recent storm than they did in January. Part of the issue was that the equipment they had was inadequate. Finally, he was asked to address the issue with the Rock Creek Park Horse Center. He said the current concessioner is GSI who took over in 2019, right before the pandemic. He said they never recovered financially from the pandemic and are planning on

ending their contract. That will not happen, however, until a new concessioner is chosen and a contract awarded.

# **Updates and Information**

- Commissioner Rodriguez reported on an open meeting he had with his constituents. He briefed them on the bottle bill and the WGL proposals. SMD specific issues discussed were mostly minor problems and are being addressed. One was a traffic light that was turned the wrong way (since repaired). The second was a minor leak in front of the business district. It has been reported, and an inspector has been assigned. He is also scheduling a walkthrough with Kendall Gibson, Ward 3 MOCRS manager to walk the area on New Mexico between the school and the business district. She is arranging to bring a DDOT representative as well.
- Commissioner Turmail asked that if any Christmas trees have not been picked up, to please contact 3B.
- Commissioner Pollock said he did a walkthrough of his SMD with Owen Cox, Ward 3 MOCRS representative. One of the problem areas that was noted was the intersection of Fulton and Tunlaw. He has also filed a request for traffic study for the intersection of 42<sup>nd</sup>, Tunlaw and New Mexico.
- Commissioner Lane reported that DC finally towed two long abandoned cars with out of the state plates, one in the 3800 block of Davis and the other in the 2100 block of 39<sup>th</sup> Street.

## **Open Forum**

None.

#### **Administrative Matters**

- Commissioner Turmail made a motion to approve the January minutes. It was seconded and approved 6-0.
- Commissioner Lavezzo gave the January financial report. Expenditures were \$45.39 and the ending balance was \$43,725.77.
- Commissioner Lavezzo gave the 1<sup>st</sup> Quarter FY 2025 Report. 3B received an allotment of \$4,275.21. Disbursements for the quarter were \$1,711.47 with \$1,533.63 for communications (web work) and \$77.83 for services. The beginning balance for the quarter was \$42,517.92 and ending balance was \$44,981.69. A motion was made and seconded to approve the first quarter FY 2025 report and passed 6-0.
- Commissioner Turmail asked Commissioner Lavezzo to speak about funding available for grants. Commissioner Lavezzo said that 3B does accept grant applications for consideration and that if anyone is interested, they should get in touch with him at 3b01@anc.dc.gov and check the guidelines on the ANC 3B website. Commissioner Lane suggested that it was a good time to review our grant guidelines which caps total grant funding at \$2,500 per organization per year.

Motion to Adjourn: Passed 6-0. 9:00 pm

**Next Meeting:** Thursday, March 13, 2025

Brian Turmail, Chair

Melissa J. Lane
Melissa Lane, Secretary

These minutes were approved by the Commission by a vote of 6-0 at the duly noticed public meeting on March 13, 2025, at which a quorum was present. (Four of the six Commissioners constitutes a quorum.)